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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you all very much for coming. Thanks for coming to

          4  our homey little low-key hearing that we're going to

          5  have here. I want to just all gather around like

          6  friends here, and this is going to be a quaint

          7  little hearing that we have.

          8                 We have three witnesses and I have an

          9  opening to read, before I do that I'd like to

         10  recognize the presence of Council Member Serrano

         11  from the Bronx, Council Member Koppell from the

         12  Bronx, Council Member Lopez from Manhattan, Council

         13  Member DeBlasio who is here as well, he's not seated

         14  with us but he's here, and I thank you all for

         15  coming. I'll just proceed with my opening statement,

         16  because part of it just has to go on the record.

         17                 Good afternoon. I'm Council Member

         18  Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York City Council

         19  Committee on Environmental Protection and I would

         20  like to welcome you to this hearing.

         21                 Today the Committee will hear

         22  testimony on proposed Intro. 123-A, which is a bill

         23  that we've heard before.

         24                 We had the first, we had a hearing on

         25  the first version of this bill on October 10th of
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          2  last year, but there are one or two folks who we

          3  didn't hear from during that hearing and we would

          4  like to hear from them, as well as to hear further

          5  testimony from DEP on the bill.

          6                 Before we get to talking about this

          7  bill, let me talk about one other aspect of the

          8  hearing that was supposed to take place today, which

          9  is not. We're going to be deferring our oversight

         10  examination of underground storage tanks. This is a

         11  very critical issue in New York City, because the

         12  New York State Department of Environmental

         13  Conservation, commonly known as the DEC, declined

         14  our invitation to testify at this hearing, and as

         15  DEC is the responsible entity for making sure that

         16  all the applicable laws regarding underground

         17  storage tanks and is the agency responsible for

         18  cleaning up spills, we are very disappointed that

         19  they chose not to participate, and it's not the

         20  first time this has happened either.

         21                 Nevertheless, we are discussing the

         22  matter with the agency, and hopefully this Committee

         23  will be able to have an oversight hearing on

         24  underground storage tanks in the very near future

         25  with participation from the DEC.
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          2                 When I was an analyst to this

          3  Committee we did have a series of hearings on this,

          4  I believe it was 1999, whatever it was, 1999, that

          5  were very good hearings, and it's critical, I think,

          6  that we examine this very important issue, and I'm

          7  most disappointed that the DEC chose not to

          8  participate. But let's move on.

          9                 With regard to the Intro at hand

         10  today, as I stated in the hearing on October 10th,

         11  just 30 years ago, prior to the passage of the Clean

         12  Water Act, New Yorkers could not fully partake of

         13  water-related activities offered by our waterways

         14  and harbor because they were polluted in large

         15  measure by improperly treated sewage that was dumped

         16  into them.

         17                 Fortunately, things are much better

         18  today. Passage of the Clean Water Act led to

         19  improvements in Wastewater treatment, which led to

         20  much cleaner waters around New York City.

         21                 Nevertheless, it is important that we

         22  continually seek ways to protect the quality of our

         23  waterways, since our environment and our own health

         24  very much depend on it.

         25                 Today we'll hear testimony on
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          2  proposed Intro. 123-A, which seeks to protect the

          3  City's receiving waters by increasing the civil

          4  penalties for water pollution, drainage and sewer

          5  control violations. Perhaps not a very glamourous

          6  topic, very important nonetheless.

          7                 Harmful substances, such as

          8  water-containing acids, solvents, heavy metals,

          9  cannot be removed by the City's sewerage treatment

         10  processes and may end up in the effluents discharged

         11  by the plant.

         12                 Tainted effluent can harm the water

         13  bodies that receive the effluent, as well as

         14  employees of the City's DEP, and the City's

         15  infrastructure.

         16                 It's also my understanding that to

         17  the extent that some poisonous substances go into

         18  our wastewater treatment plants, and, you know,

         19  there's a lot of microbiology that goes on as part

         20  of the treatment of sewage and this has caused great

         21  harm to the plant.

         22                 So, in considering proposed Intro.

         23  123-A, this Committee recognizes the importance of

         24  protecting the City's water bodies, as well as City

         25  employees and the City's infrastructure from the
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          2  pollution threats they face.

          3                 The bill will help the City enforce

          4  the legal measures vital to protecting the quality

          5  of the City's water bodies and will give them more

          6  flexibility to do so.

          7                 Specifically the increased civil and

          8  criminal penalties that this legislation would

          9  impose are intended to discourage acts that can

         10  cause problems in sewer maintenance, treatment and

         11  plant operations and ultimately water quality.

         12                 As such, proposed Intro. 123-A is the

         13  latest effort by this Committee to help ensure that

         14  New Yorkers and our water bodies are protected from

         15  environmental harm.

         16                 As I previously stated, this

         17  Committee had a hearing on Intro. 123 on October

         18  10th, 2002. Proposed Intro. 123-A differs from

         19  Intro. 123, in that it retains the current maximum

         20  period of imprisonment of 30 days, which someone

         21  convicted of a misdemeanor pursuant to Subdivision G

         22  of Section 24-524 would face.

         23                 Now, previously Intro. 123 stated

         24  that people could be locked up for up to 90 days.

         25                 Also, there is a technical amendment,
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          2  the second section 3 of Intro. 123 said that the law

          3  shall take effect on the 30th day after it shall

          4  have become a law.

          5                 This section has been renumbered as

          6  Section 4 in proposed 123-A.

          7                 So, that's what we have before us. I

          8  would like to thank all of you for coming and for

          9  your interest in this, perhaps not so glamourous but

         10  very important matter. And, so, we will proceed with

         11  our first witness. There will be representatives

         12  from the Department of Environmental Protection, and

         13  Mr. Lopez, Deputy Commissioner DEP, and Leslie

         14  Lipton, also from DEP.

         15                 So, thank you both very much for

         16  coming. We're grateful for the opportunity to have

         17  you here today. We look forward to hearing your

         18  testimony.

         19                 As we do in all of our hearings, we

         20  swear the witnesses in, the Counsel to the Committee

         21  will give you the oath, we hope that you accept it,

         22  and once being sworn, if you can state your names

         23  for the record and proceed with your good testimony.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your
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          2  right hand.

          3                 In the testimony that you're about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: I do.

          7                 MR. LIPTON: I do.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please state

         10  your names for the record and continue with your

         11  testimony.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: My name is

         13  Alfonso Lopez, and I'm Deputy Commissioner in

         14  Wastewater Treatment in the Department of

         15  Environmental Protection.

         16                 MR. LIPTON: Leslie Lipton. I'm Chief

         17  of the Regulatory Planning and Research Section in

         18  the Bureau of Wastewater Treatment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you very much. Thanks for being here.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: Okay. Good

         22  afternoon, Chairman Gennaro, members of the

         23  Committee. On behalf of the Commissioner,

         24  Commissioner Ward, I want to thank you for the

         25  opportunity to address the Committee concerning
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          2  Intro. 123-A, sponsored by Chairman Gennaro.

          3                 At the table with me is Leslie

          4  Lipton, who is in charge of our regulatory

          5  compliance area, he just introduced himself.

          6                 In my testimony before the Committee

          7  in October, October 10th, I discussed the general

          8  background and the purpose of this legislation.

          9  Rather than repeat that information, which you're

         10  already familiar with, my prepared remarks this

         11  afternoon will focus less on the background of the

         12  legislation and more on the types and numbers of

         13  violations issued by the Industrial Pretreatment

         14  Program, and how DEP would use the amendments

         15  contained in Intro. 123 in the event that the

         16  legislation becomes law.

         17                 Before I begin, however, I want to

         18  follow up on the issue that came up at the last

         19  hearing on this legislation when you inquired about

         20  the provision in the bill that references section

         21  80.10 of the State's penal law. That section creates

         22  fines for corporations.

         23                 Paragraph two of that section

         24  authorizes special clients for offenses defined in

         25  the law or ordinances outside of the penal law. By
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          2  including in Intro. 123 a provision referring to

          3  Section 80.10 of the penal law, Intro. 123

          4  authorizes the imposition of a special fine against

          5  corporation. A special fine is defined as either a

          6  fine provided for in the law creating the offense,

          7  in this case, the Administrative Law, or any higher

          8  amount not exceeding double the amount of the

          9  Corporation's gain from the commission of the

         10  offense.

         11                 In the case of very large corporate

         12  companies, whose pretreatment systems include a cost

         13  of hundreds of thousands of dollars to install the

         14  special fine created by Section 80.10 may be a

         15  useful tool to encourage compliance.

         16                 That was the reason for the reference

         17  to section 80.10 and why it was added to the

         18  legislation.

         19                 I should add that because DEP does

         20  not have experience using this provision, we cannot

         21  predict how effective the provision could actually

         22  be in enforcement compliance.

         23                 I would now like to return to the

         24  focus, the primary focus, which is the IPP

         25  violation.

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 The simplest way to explain the

          3  number and the types of violations used by the IPP

          4  staff is to draw your attention to the chart

          5  attached to my statement entitled "Monthly NOV

          6  Report," or Notice of Violation Report. Starting

          7  from the left-hand side, the chart shows a citation

          8  to the law, the City law, or regulations enforced by

          9  IPP staff, and then a short description of the

         10  prohibition created in the section of the law or

         11  regulation.

         12                 The three columns to the right side

         13  of the chart show, for each section of the law

         14  regulation, the number of violations issued during

         15  the following time period.

         16                 The month of December in 2002. It

         17  should be on the back of the package. The first six

         18  months of Fiscal 2003. And lastly, all of Fiscal

         19  2002.

         20                 If you quickly scan the chart, you'll

         21  note that the very last prohibition, entitled

         22  "violation of DEP or ECB order or permit," is the

         23  single largest category of violation accounting for

         24  nearly half of all of the violations issued by the

         25  IPP staff.

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 In most cases, that violation is

          3  issued to food service establishments, because the

          4  responsible party failed to comply with an order to

          5  install grease traps.

          6                 As you know from previous hearings on

          7  the subject, keeping grease out of the sewers can

          8  have a substantial impact on the number of sewer

          9  back-ups experienced by property owners, using that

         10  sewer.

         11                 Food service establishments are the

         12  largest source of grease. As such, food service

         13  establishments are required to have a device called

         14  a grease interceptor that separates water and

         15  grease.

         16                 When an IPP staff discover a

         17  restaurant that does not have a grease trap, we do

         18  not immediately issue a violation. Instead, what

         19  they do is issue an order directing the restaurant

         20  operator to install a grease trap within 30 days.

         21                 The order itself is not a violation

         22  and it carries no penalties.

         23                 If, however, upon reinspection the

         24  restaurant owner complies with the order and install

         25  the grease trap, then there is no violation and none
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          2  is issued.

          3                 If the grease trap has not been

          4  installed, we will then issue a notice of violation.

          5                 Failure to install a grease trap is

          6  by no means the only situation in which our

          7  enforcement staff uses a Commissioner's order.

          8                 There are a variety of other

          9  situations and issues which we can generate a

         10  Commissioner's order. Rather than discussing in my

         11  prepared remarks all of these areas, categories of

         12  violations, they care included in the chart.

         13                 I would be pleased to answer

         14  questions from the Committee relative to this

         15  information in the chart.

         16                 Also attached to my statement is a

         17  recent staff report that shows the disposition of

         18  IPP violations. These two charts show some reform

         19  the types of violations and dispositions issued by

         20  the IPP staff.

         21                 If Intro. 123 is enacted, our

         22  schedule of penalties for sewer use violations will

         23  change. In the remaining part of my prepared

         24  statement I will explain a few features of this

         25  change.
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          2                 In contemplation of the change of the

          3  Administrative Law penalties for sewer use

          4  violations, DEP staff worked very closely with the

          5  subcommittee of our dedicated Citizens Advisory

          6  Committee, the CAC, and they created a draft penalty

          7  schedule.

          8                 I believe the draft schedule was

          9  provided to the Committee a few days ago.

         10                 In the event that 123 becomes law,

         11  this schedule outlines the penalty that DEP proposed

         12  for first, second and third offenses of every

         13  provision of the law and regulation that the IPP

         14  staff enforces.

         15                 The new maximum penalty for the most

         16  serious violation becomes $10,000. Examples of the

         17  most serious violations include discharges of

         18  radioactive material, discharges of toxics,

         19  discharges of flammable or explosive materials. All

         20  of these violations now carry a maximum penalty of

         21  $1,000, which we believe is far too low.

         22                 That's one of the two main reasons

         23  for the Council to pass Intro. 123.

         24                 If the most serious violators only

         25  carry a maximum penalty of $1,000, then moderately
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          2  serious violations have to carry a smaller penalty.

          3                 The less serious violations are yet

          4  still smaller penalties.

          5                 Because our sewer use regulations

          6  apply to some very large commercial and industrial

          7  enterprises, even penalties of $1,000 per violation

          8  do not deter violators.

          9                 Penalties of $1,000 or less can too

         10  easily be dismissed as just the course of doing

         11  business. That's one of the main reasons for

         12  enacting Intro. 123.

         13                 The other reason is to promote

         14  voluntary compliance. As explained earlier at an

         15  earlier hearing, the original initiative behind

         16  Intro. 123 was USEPA's policy to promote voluntary

         17  compliance with environmental regulations by

         18  offering zero penalties for businesses that show

         19  good faith.

         20                 Under this policy, when violators are

         21  discovered through on-site inspection assistance, or

         22  voluntary environmental audit, and when these

         23  violations are disclosed and remedied within a

         24  limited time frame, the enforcement agency will

         25  either refrain from issuing a violation or issue a
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          2  violation that carries no penalty. This is the type

          3  of policy that Intro. 123 will promote.

          4                 As DEP envisions it, there will be

          5  limits on the application of this policy. For

          6  example, DEP and its Citizens Advisory Committee

          7  have developed draft guidelines on the application

          8  of the zero or minimal penalty. These draft

          9  guidelines, which I will be happy to share with the

         10  Committee, state that the policy will only apply if

         11  the following conditions are met.

         12                 The business immediately corrects the

         13  serious threats to the public health and safety and

         14  the environment. The business has not knowingly

         15  caused a serious harm to the public health, safety

         16  and environment. The violation does not involve

         17  criminal conduct. The violation does not cause the

         18  City's treatment system to exceed its effluent

         19  limits, and the business has not received any notice

         20  of violations for the specific type of violation in

         21  question during the past two years, or if the

         22  businesses receive notices of violation during the

         23  past two years, they are required to contribute in

         24  environmentally beneficial projects and/or attend

         25  mandatory environmental education seminars.
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          2                 In conclusion, I want to stress that

          3  Intro. 123 and the enforcement schedules and

          4  guidelines that go along with it were not solely of

          5  DEP's creation. They grew out of a national trend so

          6  it's offering compliance assistance and penalty

          7  mitigation to business owners working in good faith,

          8  the same compliance with a very complicated

          9  environmental regulation.

         10                 Also, they were developed in close

         11  consultation with very able and informed people who

         12  have served well on DEP's Citizen Advisory

         13  Committee.

         14                 As you may remember, Mr. Michael

         15  Green and Mr. Ken Heim, two members of the CHC on

         16  pollution prevention, testified at the last hearing

         17  in support of this legislation.

         18                 I believe Mr. Heim is in the audience

         19  this afternoon, and may have some comments.

         20                 This concludes my prepared remarks on

         21  behalf of Commissioner Ward. I want to thank you for

         22  allowing me to submit testimony on this matter.

         23                 I will be happy to answer any

         24  questions you may have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very
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          2  much. Thank you for your testimony. Thank you for

          3  working closely with my staff on this issue.

          4                 I stated at the outset many months

          5  ago that I want to be of help to the Administration

          6  in combatting this problem, and I wanted to pledge

          7  my cooperation.

          8                 We would have been here earlier, were

          9  it not for this sort of special fine kind of

         10  situation that you referred to and that was a little

         11  bit of a complicated legal wrinkle, which I trust

         12  that we're in good shape with. DEP's Counsel Mark

         13  Hoffer is okay with the special fines thing? I just

         14  would like some further clarification to the extent

         15  that I could get it, about, you know, DEP's lack of

         16  being able to predict how this special fine

         17  provision could actually be enforced and enhanced.

         18  Could you elaborate a little more on that matter, on

         19  why there's uncertainty within DEP's ranks as to how

         20  the special fines would be used?

         21                 I mean, are we going in the right

         22  direction here? It was my understanding from the

         23  outset that the special fine was the way to go, and

         24  I put it forward. It actually didn't come from me,

         25  it came from the Administration, is my
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          2  understanding.

          3                 But I embrace the concept that's your

          4  recommendation, but then we got sort of hung up on

          5  it, and my understanding is that we sort of cleared

          6  that hurdle, but there still seems to be some

          7  residual uncertainty about something.

          8                 So, just give me a little more than

          9  what I've got here in the statement and maybe I'll

         10  be satisfied.

         11                 MR. LIPTON: Okay, maybe I can address

         12  that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         14                 MR. LIPTON: I think Al had --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you could

         16  just state your name for the record?

         17                 MR. LIPTON: I'm sorry. All right.

         18  Leslie Lipton, New York City DEP.

         19                 I think the uncertainty comes, as Al

         20  has mentioned, only because we've never had that

         21  provision before in our Administrative Code, that

         22  remedy has never been available to us. We've always

         23  had pretty much the civil administrative penalties,

         24  with regard to criminal matters, any time we're

         25  aware of a criminal circumstances, we will refer
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          2  that either to EPA, the State, or when you say

          3  Attorney General.

          4                 This was something really that we

          5  hadn't contemplated, something that we had been

          6  advised by the Law Department was really an

          7  additional option which they thought was --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is they?

          9                 MR. LIPTON: Corporation, Law

         10  Department.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Sure.

         12  Sure.

         13                 MR. LIPTON: They had advised that

         14  they thought this provision was a wise one to have,

         15  not that we have to use it but it's an option.

         16                 I think as the testimony showed, it

         17  would arise in a situation where if you had a

         18  company, a large company which had to go through the

         19  expense of -- some of these facilities are very

         20  large and the equipment can be very costly. In those

         21  circumstances, the benefit derived is from a company

         22  not complying with that, not installing the

         23  equipment, the operators, the chemicals, the energy

         24  required that goes into that. The savings can be

         25  great, and I think what's contemplated here is if we
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          2  run across that situation, and I'm not sure that we

          3  will, I mean, we're very familiar with our industry

          4  in New York City, and offhand, if you ask me for an

          5  example, I'm not going to give you one, but there

          6  might be something out there where we had someone

          7  not complying, but the chances are if there was

          8  someone out there like that, we would already have

          9  been dealing with it.

         10                 So, I think it's more of an option

         11  that's being included here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the point

         13  is, is that if someone has gained substantially

         14  through noncompliance, and if the cost of that

         15  compliance would have been some real big number,

         16  then the special fine allows us to like double that

         17  number and give them the big whack, right?

         18                 MR. LIPTON: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, in

         20  common parlance?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: Yes. I

         22  think a good example would be, for example, General

         23  Motors, which we're not concerned with, obviously,

         24  but when you have a facility like that, the savings

         25  can be immense, millions of dollars.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Savings for

          3  non-compliance?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: Yes.

          5                 And, of course, it harms, not just

          6  harms the environment, it puts them in an unfair

          7  competitive position.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: So you

         10  have the small shops complying, doing the best they

         11  can to install the equipment, comply, and then you

         12  have this larger  actor who has no reason not to

         13  comply.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 And, so, our environment, and our

         16  infrastructure, and our people end up, you know,

         17  essentially subsidizing their operation, and giving

         18  them some kind of competitive advantage.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: That's

         20  correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, I would

         22  just like to state for the record, I hope that we

         23  would be vigorous in the use of this tool, the

         24  reason why this bill has been delayed is because

         25  like a lot of talk over this special fine, how do we
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          2  use it and what do we do with it, so on and so

          3  forth, and this was an idea, as you stated, that

          4  grew out of the Administration, and I would like,

          5  upon us going forward with this bill, for us to be

          6  sure about what we would do with this tool, if given

          7  the opportunity to use it, I think was a good idea,

          8  and I don't think we should shrink from using

          9  whatever is in our arsenal to deter people from

         10  having us subsidize their operations at the expense

         11  of our environment, our infrastructure and our

         12  workers and so on.

         13                 So, I would urge us to be vigorous in

         14  the application of this fine as appropriate, I

         15  guess.

         16                 So, that was my first point, and with

         17  regard to, just going through your statement, about

         18  the practice of not automatically issuing a

         19  violation to restaurant operators who don't have

         20  grease traps installed; was this like a longstanding

         21  practice of DEP, or is this in line with kind of a

         22  new philosophy? Could you help me out with that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: Well, I'll

         24  start and then I'll let Leslie fill in.

         25                 It's not a new practice, it's a
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          2  longstanding practice. It's pretty much the

          3  philosophy trying to get people to comply. The issue

          4  is basically not to bang them on the head on the

          5  first shot. If we see that they're willing to

          6  comply, if we see that they're not bad players in

          7  the first place, that we don't see a reason to issue

          8  fines and penalties right up front, but rather to

          9  trying to get them into compliance. Again, the focus

         10  is trying to get people into compliance rather than

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It does give

         13  them a free pass, though, does it not? It gives them

         14  a free pass until the government catches them, and

         15  then even once caught, you have 30 days to -- so,

         16  what's the incentive to come into compliance if you

         17  know that, it would seem that the method of

         18  operating would be simply to wait until DEP catches

         19  you and then that starts a 30-day clock for you to

         20  comply with the regulations.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: Generally

         22  speaking we're not talking about establishments that

         23  either have or don't have grease traps, it's rather

         24  sizing. You know, they'll have one but it's not the

         25  right size, and we're trying to get them to have the
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          2  right piece of equipment or they have a grease trap

          3  and the problem might be maintaining the grease

          4  trap.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. I'm

          6  really looking at people who are willing, who make

          7  an attempt to obey the regulation, obey the law,

          8  they don't have a provision for one or whatever and

          9  they wait for you folks to come around and they use

         10  that as the opportunity to take the 30 days to get

         11  them. But that has not been your experience?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: I'll let

         13  Leslie answer.

         14                 MR. LIPTON: One thing, we do give 30

         15  days to install. I think one thing that we do is,

         16  when our inspectors go out there and they look at

         17  the existing grease trap, which may be undersized,

         18  in many cases they're undersized. The one thing they

         19  do is they check for proper maintenance. So, if

         20  there is a large amount of grease and it appears it

         21  has not been cleaned properly, they will issue a

         22  violation. There's no time period in which to come

         23  to compliance for that. So, they often will issue a

         24  violation for that.

         25                 And as far as, you know, a lot of the
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          2  establishments that we do visit are small. There are

          3  larger ones, but in many cases they are small.

          4                 Many times there's a lot of turnover

          5  on these places and people who appear to want to

          6  comply, many times we're told we didn't know the

          7  sizing, we were told by the previous establishment

          8  by the plumber that this was correct, and we have

          9  our own sizing requirements, and sometimes I don't

         10  think through desire to evade, but rather through

         11  ignorance, if you will, we come across that. So, we

         12  felt it was fair to give these people 30 days to

         13  comply. And that was just a policy we made long,

         14  long ago.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I mean,

         16  you folks are the experts, I just want to make sure

         17  that people aren't, you know, abusing your good

         18  natured disposition.

         19                 MR. LIPTON: They don't think we're

         20  good natured, so... That's what we've been told.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Okay.

         22                 Now, I'm reading now, when people or

         23  businesses violate federal government regulations,

         24  they typically need to pay their economic benefit of

         25  non-compliance as part of the penalty.
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          2                 Does DEP plan to assess penalties

          3  that would incorporate the violations, or the

          4  violator's economic benefit, even for small

          5  businesses?

          6                 MR. LIPTON: The economic benefit

          7  policy really is something I think derived out of an

          8  EPA policy long ago, and there's a lot of sense to

          9  it.

         10                 One of the problems with our fine

         11  schedule as it currently is, is you can't do that.

         12  Often times.

         13                 Sometimes you can. One problem, of

         14  course, is establishing what the economic benefit

         15  is. Sometimes it's easier where you have fixed

         16  equipment.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNERO: Sure. You've got

         18  to buy X, Y, Z gadgets, and you haven't bought them.

         19  That's been your benefit, right?

         20                 MR. LIPTON: Right. And sometimes it's

         21  a little more difficult to establish.

         22                 I think one of the things that our

         23  penalty, or our proposed penalty, was it certainly

         24  gives us the flexibility to start looking into that.

         25  Because now you have a range of zero to 10,000, and
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          2  usually that encompasses most of the types of cases

          3  that will come across.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. LIPTON: Before that we were so

          6  limited that, you know, that really wasn't even a

          7  consideration. So, I think that is something we take

          8  into account in establishing our penalty schedules.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. So far so

         10  good.

         11                 Yes, I just want to, I know you

         12  mentioned it, but what we've been living with to

         13  date, the $1,000 penalty as the highest amount is a

         14  joke, and you mention that for large operations, I

         15  mean this is just the cost of doing business. And I

         16  guess what I'm looking for is to what extent do you

         17  encounter violators for whom this is just the cost

         18  of doing business and they just routinely get

         19  summonses; is that very commonplace? Or is this like

         20  a theoretical thing? Or this is something which

         21  really takes place out there?

         22                 MR. LIPTON: The answer is, yes, it

         23  does happen out there. Restaurants are one category

         24  that this happens with.

         25                 But there are quite a few others. For
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          2  example, some of the chemical companies we deal

          3  with, we had something not that long ago where we

          4  ended up issuing 40 violations, they were ph

          5  violations, so there was corrosion.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. LIPTON: And we ended up having to

          8  do that, and it was a repeat issue. I'm happy to say

          9  we resolved that, but, yes, I think the answer is it

         10  does happen, we come across it -- I wouldn't say

         11  routinely, but it happens more than sporadically.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it's

         13  certainly something we should take great steps to

         14  stop.

         15                 You mentioned Mr. Michael Green and

         16  Ken Haim, I know you indicated they were going to be

         17  in the audience. Thanks for coming.

         18                 I might have one or two more

         19  questions, but I'd like to open it up to other

         20  members?

         21                 Okay, just by way of background, are

         22  there certain companies or types of industries that

         23  tend to violate sewer use requirements more than

         24  others?

         25                 MR. LIPTON: Yes, I think the
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          2  restaurants, or one of them, as Al had said, not

          3  installing grease separators, that's one.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. LIPTON: We do have metal

          6  finishers, electro-platers, and the reason for that

          7  is, you know, a pre-treatment program, out of the

          8  300 or so industrial users that we regulate --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Three-hundred

         10  you said?

         11                 MR. LIPTON: Three-hundred what we

         12  call SIUs, Significant Industrial Users.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. LIPTON: They constitute a

         15  majority of them.

         16                 So, we do run into repeat violations

         17  with those types of companies, and I think it's not

         18  because there's a real failure to comply. What

         19  happens is, they have equipment installed, things go

         20  wrong with equipment. So, you may see a company

         21  coming back out of compliance a year or two later

         22  for a particular metal, and often they're minor

         23  violations, but we do see that as just the nature of

         24  this type of business. So, I think those are two

         25  areas that we --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. And of the

          3  300 I guess industries, when you say 300, you mean

          4  300 companies, or establishments?

          5                 MR. LIPTON: Yes, our universe is much

          6  larger than that, and the companies that we

          7  regulate, we have a little over 300 again what we

          8  call significant industrial users, it's actually the

          9  fine term that the federal regulations have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, the big

         11  guys.

         12                 MR. LIPTON: Well, actually it's not

         13  so much big. Some of them are big, but some of them

         14  just fall into a particular federal category.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: By virtue of

         16  what they do?

         17                 MR. LIPTON: By virtue of what they

         18  do, so you may have a small jeweler who is doing

         19  some electroplating, unfortunately for him falls

         20  into the federal category. He's an SIU.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 MR. LIPTON: And some of them, of

         23  course, are much bigger. We have chemical,

         24  pharmaceutical, steam generating plants that are --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are we confident
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          2  that our universe is inclusive of everyone who is

          3  supposed to be included in it? Because I know, for

          4  example, another part of DEP, with the community

          5  right to know law they try to get people that use

          6  hazardous substance to file these facility inventory

          7  forms, and, you know, DEP has made great strides

          8  over the last year in trying to find out those

          9  people who were supposed to file these specific FIF

         10  forms, and they don't know how big the universe of

         11  people out there that are really supposed to be

         12  filing these things, but they think they got a lot

         13  of them. They used to be 3,000 that they used to

         14  monitor and then it was 5,000, and now it's 8,000

         15  and they're still trying to figure out what the

         16  total universe of people who are supposed to file

         17  these, people have forms and to sort of bring into

         18  the system, and I'm wondering if there's an analog

         19  with you folks; do you believe you have a good

         20  handle on it, like the universe of people who really

         21  should be participating in like the pretreatment

         22  program and that your universe is well defined and

         23  you've got a line on who all of these people are?

         24                 MR. LIPTON: The answer is, yes, we

         25  believe so.
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          2                 Al was just pointing out to me that

          3  maybe I should just preface by saying I've been

          4  doing, working in pretreatment, and Bob LaGrada, who

          5  is here today also, we've been doing this for about

          6  19 years, and we know a lot of these companies. A

          7  lot of them have been around for a long time and

          8  we're aware of them.

          9                 I'll just point out that one of the

         10  things we do on an annual basis is we get a tape

         11  from the New York State Department of Labor, which

         12  gives us a list of any new businesses which may be

         13  coming that we should be aware of.

         14                 So, we do get that, and we also have

         15  a program where we have people who do, in the course

         16  of their other duties, in driving through the City,

         17  still do drive-by inspections of areas, and if they

         18  see any businesses that we may not be aware of, they

         19  will bring it back to the office, and we will

         20  investigate whether it should be a regulated case.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 MR. LIPTON: We have lots of other

         23  programs that do, you know, continually monitor

         24  that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 My last question. The penalty scheme

          3  that's contemplated for 123-A, does that include

          4  higher penalties for repeat offenders?

          5                 MR. LIPTON: Yes, it does, and if I

          6  can just give you a real quick example, since I had

          7  prepared something --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          9                 MR. LIPTON: And I think it's also a

         10  good contrast between what currently exists and what

         11  we're proposing with radioactive discharges to the

         12  sewer system. The way the current penalty schedule

         13  is, knowing that there's a $1,000 maximum, the first

         14  offense violation is 950, our second is 975, and the

         15  third offense is 1,000.

         16                 Well, sounds pretty silly, because we

         17  are limited by the maximum, under the new scheme the

         18  first offense would be 2,500, the second offense

         19  would be 5,000, the third 7,500 and the fourth,

         20  10,000. So, there's a real difference in the way

         21  we're treating the occasional, or the one-time

         22  offender or the repeat. And there's other examples

         23  which you can see under toxic and solvents, that

         24  sort of thing, flammables.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.
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          2  Thank you very much for your testimony, and I'm

          3  grateful to have your cooperation and we're on the

          4  precipice of getting this done, so that will be a

          5  good day when we do that.

          6                 MR. LIPTON: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, thank you

          8  very much, and please give my best regards to the

          9  Commissioner and the good staff at DEP.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         11                 MR. LIPTON: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         13                 Okay, the next witness, Mr. E.

         14  Charles Hunt, of the New York State Restaurant

         15  Association.

         16                 Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Hunt.

         17  Thanks for coming before our Committee today and

         18  representing the New York City Restaurant

         19  Association.

         20                 I know that the Restaurant

         21  Association either was not able or whatever the

         22  situation was back when we had a hearing last

         23  October to present its views before the Committee

         24  and actually the hearing today is being held in

         25  large part to give the Restaurant Association the
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          2  opportunity to go on the record regarding this bill

          3  before we act.

          4                 So, we're here for you.

          5                 MR. HUNT: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, I'll ask

          7  Donna DeCostanzo to give the oath, and then we look

          8  forward to hearing your testimony.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         10  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         11  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         12  truth?

         13                 MR. HUNT: I do.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         15                 MR. HUNT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         16  and members of the Committee. My name is E. Charles

         17  Hunt, I'm the Executive Vice President of the New

         18  York State Restaurant Association in charge of the

         19  New York City Chapter. We're a trade association

         20  representing over 2,000 food service outlets within

         21  the five boroughs of New York City. Our membership

         22  is made up of all types of operations, from small

         23  neighborhood coffee shops to the Four Seasons and

         24  Tavern on the Green.

         25                 This afternoon we're addressing the
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          2  proposal to amend the City Administrative Code

          3  regarding increasing the civil penalties for water

          4  pollution, drainage and sewer control violations and

          5  how that would affect restaurants.

          6                 These proposed amendments, if I'm

          7  correct, I thought at least were directed primarily

          8  towards industrial discharge rather than wastewater

          9  discharge by restaurants and food service

         10  operations.

         11                 However, having heard some of the

         12  remarks that preceded my testimony, I may get off my

         13  written prepared remarks.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Feel free

         15  to. Take as long as you want.

         16                 MR. HUNT: First of all, I'd like to

         17  point out that I think that one of the reasons that

         18  the restaurants, as was testified to, are the most

         19  frequent violators of the wastewater control

         20  regulations, there are 21,950 food service

         21  operations within the five boroughs, compared to the

         22  300 on the list that they talked about.

         23                 There's a big reason for that. I

         24  think percentage-wise we're in pretty good shape.

         25                 The New York State Restaurant
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          2  Association has worked closely with the City's

          3  Department of Environmental Protection to inform our

          4  industry of its responsibilities in respect to the

          5  discharge of grease and oil, by-products of food

          6  service operations.

          7                 I've previously testified before this

          8  Committee several years ago regarding our efforts in

          9  that regard.

         10                 In recent years, the Department of

         11  Environmental Protection has, as they indicated,

         12  conducted inspections of a large number of New York

         13  City restaurants to determine that they have a

         14  properly sized grease trap, grease interceptor, and

         15  that they're being properly maintained.

         16                 It's my understanding, based on

         17  conversations with the DEP, that this has resulted

         18  in a better than 90 percent compliance by those

         19  operations that have been inspected. Essentially

         20  because of the level of non-compliance that would be

         21  required to trigger the maximum findings indicated

         22  in this proposed legislation, I think they would

         23  rarely be determined in respect to restaurant and

         24  food service operations, and, therefore, we really

         25  do not oppose this legislation.
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          2                 However, given current economic

          3  conditions, increased civil penalties, that might

          4  affect our industry are of considerable concern to

          5  us.

          6                 We're finding that higher fines are

          7  cropping up throughout many of the City's

          8  administrative agencies.

          9                 We do our best to obey and respect

         10  the laws and rules of the City; however, we cannot

         11  bear a level of fines that would put a responsible

         12  operator's business in jeopardy.

         13                 We would be more comfortable with a

         14  bill with language that would more clearly protect

         15  the little guy.

         16                 I was happy to hear that, and I was

         17  aware that the enforcement methods used did give a

         18  period of time in which a restaurant could bring it

         19  into compliance.

         20                 One thing I'd like to point out that

         21  maybe the Committee is not aware of, but I doubt

         22  that there are very many restaurants that

         23  deliberately do not maintain their grease traps,

         24  simply because, if you've ever worked in a

         25  restaurant, if you don't maintain your grease traps,
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          2  they end up backing up, and it seems as Murphy's Law

          3  applies, they always back up on New Year's Eve,

          4  Mother's Day, Valentine's Day or one of the busiest

          5  times of the year.

          6                 So, I don't think there are many

          7  restaurants out there that deliberately do not

          8  maintain their grease traps.

          9                 The size of grease traps is a

         10  problem. The plumbing code does define it, and most

         11  restaurants that are opened brand new will be

         12  required to put in a grease trap that is sufficient

         13  to handle what their discharge is going to be.

         14                 I think you'll find that the level of

         15  compliance is based on our responsibility to

         16  educate, and the DEP's responsibility to educate the

         17  restaurant.

         18                 Therefore, in conclusion, I'd like to

         19  state that we're aware that there may be a few less

         20  responsible operators who are uninformed, or choose

         21  to ignore existing regulations.

         22                 The Department of Environmental

         23  Protection does have a rigorous and effective

         24  program of education and enforcement in effect, and

         25  they are enforcing a level of fines that are
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          2  appropriate, and we hope that the members of this

          3  Committee will consider our position when acting on

          4  this proposal.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Mr. Hunt.

          7                 Just a couple of things, I guess.

          8                 I know that any time there's a change

          9  in the law, I'm sure that your organization

         10  endeavors to educate your membership as to what the

         11  new rules are, and that's certainly a good thing.

         12  But I also would like to give you the opportunity to

         13  use myself and this Committee, and the staff of this

         14  Committee, that to the extent that we proceed with

         15  this legislation, of course we'll only do so after

         16  looking at your recommendation, that you bring

         17  things to our attention, if there is some

         18  significant change in DEP's enforcement policy that

         19  perhaps we're not aware of. Because theoretically

         20  they could start issuing violations at the get-go.

         21                 They have chosen not to do that as a

         22  policy that they have, it's a longstanding policy.

         23  It seems to work. That's what I get from them,

         24  that's what I get from you, but to the extent that

         25  there are any issues with regard to your association
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          2  and DEP, that I could be of help or just be helpful

          3  for me to know about, then please feel free to

          4  contact myself or the Counsel to the Committee, and

          5  then we'd be happy to go to bat for you.

          6                 I mean, I eat out at restaurants all

          7  the time, you know, so --

          8                 MR. HUNT: It's pretty hard to avoid

          9  them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Your

         11  membership is some of my favorite places.

         12                 But having said that, even with the

         13  compliance rate of 90 percent, there's close to

         14  22,000 food service establishments, or whatever, so

         15  that would still leave, we'd still be in the

         16  thousands, in terms of 2,000 or whatever it would

         17  be, in terms of non-compliant places. I don't know

         18  if those numbers would hold up. It's probably less

         19  than that.

         20                 MR. HUNT: I think that in most cases

         21  it's a matter of not understanding the

         22  responsibility.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And, so,

         24  I think, you know, DEP's approach is a prudent one,

         25  and that they believe that honest business people
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          2  are going to want to comply with the law, and are

          3  going to want to be educated, and when given the

          4  opportunity to do so, they do it. And I think that's

          5  a better way of proceeding.

          6                 But I guess my word of caution here

          7  is that, you know, as we tip-toe into tighter and

          8  tougher economic times, and, you know, budget gaps

          9  being what they will, and you know, let's hope that

         10  all the various City agencies don't radically adjust

         11  their enforcement policies in order to, I guess to

         12  use a food term, get some low-hanging fruit.

         13                 So, you know, should that be the

         14  case, I don't expect it will be with this agency in

         15  whom I have a lot of confidence.

         16                 I guess what I'm saying is, any time

         17  you feel the need to communicate to me or to this

         18  Committee, anything that would be of interest to us,

         19  any way that we could be of help, and you know, by

         20  all means we'd be happy to talk to you and we would

         21  welcome that opportunity.

         22                 MR. HUNT: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, in the

         24  statement of DEP, they lay out their -- they have

         25  draft guidelines that state that the policy of the
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          2  zero or minimal penalties will only apply if the

          3  following conditions are met, and he went through

          4  the list of them. Do these sound reasonable to you,

          5  like that businesses immediately correct serious

          6  threats to the public, helping to save the

          7  environment; businesses not knowingly cause serious

          8  harm to the public, health safety and the

          9  environment, the violation is not about criminal

         10  conduct, the violation does not cause the City's

         11  treatment system to exceed its effluent limitations;

         12  and the business is basically a good actor and

         13  hasn't received a lot of violations in the past. It

         14  sounds like it kind of passes the reasonable persons

         15  standard by my way of looking at it, and do you have

         16  a copy of the DEP statement?

         17                 MR. HUNT: Yes, I do. I have one right

         18  here.

         19                 I take no issue with any of those

         20  requirements. I want to thank the Committee for the

         21  opportunity to speak before you and your offer to

         22  help us perhaps if problems do occur.

         23                 I must say that we've enjoyed I think

         24  a pretty good relationship with the DEP, and my

         25  suggestion that perhaps you read through my remarks
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          2  that I was suggesting that some of the agencies may

          3  have become a little too enthusiastic to meet their

          4  budget needs.

          5                 I wasn't referring to DEP, I was

          6  referring more to one of the other agencies or

          7  several of the other agencies.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Different

          9  committee.

         10                 MR. HUNT: Yes. And I wouldn't want

         11  Chris Quinn to think that I was talking about her

         12  Committee, but perhaps I was.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         14                 MR. HUNT: Her Committee, but the

         15  agency it oversees.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. My focus

         17  here is on the good work of DEP, and there certainly

         18  has been good work, and, so, but certainly would

         19  have the opportunity to have your Association go on

         20  the record, and I'm happy with your level of comfort

         21  with what we're trying to do, because we're really

         22  going after people that we're trying to -- who are

         23  willing to, you know, hurt our system and our

         24  environment for their own benefit, and this

         25  certainly does not include the large body of your
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          2  members. And, so, that's who we're going after and

          3  your support, and our endeavor is much appreciated

          4  because it would be, many people in the restaurant

          5  business who would be enforced against if they were

          6  to behave in the manner as outlined in Intro. 123-A.

          7                 MR. HUNT: Yes, I think the incidence

          8  of that is very infrequent.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's --

         10                 MR. HUNT: Let's make it better.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         12  Absolutely. But there is a problem for, you know,

         13  some of the people that interact with our sewer

         14  system in ways that are not helpful, and, so, we're

         15  happy for your cooperation and your testimony and

         16  your ongoing partnership with DEP on a matter of

         17  great importance.

         18                 MR. HUNT: It is our pleasure, Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Hunt, thank

         21  you very much. I appreciate it.

         22                 Mr. Hunt, if you could just leave a

         23  business card with the Counsel to the Committee?

         24                 Oh, we do have the information. Okay,

         25  we've got it. Okay, we have your information. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We now call Mr.

          4  Kenneth Heim, representing -- I can't make it out.

          5  It begins with a V.

          6                 MR. HEIM: Vockert Precision

          7  Technology.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Like I

          9  said.

         10                 Okay, thank you, Mr. Heim. We're

         11  grateful to have you here again on this issue.

         12                 Donna will do the ritual and then if

         13  you could state your name and proceed with your

         14  testimony.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         16  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         17  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         18  truth?

         19                 MR. HEIM: I do.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 MR. HEIM: My name is Kenneth Heim

         22  from Volkert Precision Technologies in Queens. I'm

         23  here basically to reaffirm my testimony of October

         24  10th, to give some additional assurance to the

         25  Committee, if it's necessary that the CAC and the
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          2  subcommittee that I chair, which is the Regulations

          3  and Enforcement Subcommittee, have done a lot of

          4  work with DEP as it relates to this change in this

          5  legislation, and that we, as a group, are quite

          6  comfortable with it.

          7                 I also wanted to reassure you that,

          8  and I don't think it was in my prior remarks, we had

          9  large companies, individual citizens, citizens

         10  groups and small businesses all represented on this

         11  Subcommittee that worked with the DEP in trying to

         12  develop it. We did not, I believe, have any

         13  restaurateurs, restaurant industry representatives

         14  either on the CAC or certainly volunteering to be

         15  part of the Regulations and Enforcement Subcommittee

         16  and maybe would encourage them to participate a

         17  little bit more in the future, it might be helpful

         18  to have their perspective on some of these issues

         19  going forward.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. I'm for

         21  that.

         22                 MR. HEIM: The bottom line of it all,

         23  as far as I'm concerned, is that we really believe

         24  that for the egregious violators, the DEP needs a

         25  stronger enforcement authority than they have right
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          2  now. While at the same time they need the

          3  flexibility to be able to work with the people that

          4  are trying to comply. Whether it's somebody that's

          5  got a grease trap problem, whether it's a plater

          6  that has some kind of a pH problem, whether it's a

          7  company like ours that does some debarring

          8  operations and ends up maybe from time to time

          9  having a problem with some copper or some nickel,

         10  and that's not something that we've had in the last

         11  ten years or so, but this needs to be a good

         12  positive working relationship where everybody is on

         13  the same page.

         14                 Where they're not, and that isn't

         15  happening as much as it used to, at least based on

         16  my review of history --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's not

         18  happening as much?

         19                 MR. HEIM: Well, where DEP and the

         20  controlled community are at odds.

         21                 I mean, basically it seems to me that

         22  there are less instances where you have the

         23  egregious violator but when you do you need to be

         24  able to get them under control, and I think that's

         25  what we're trying to provide to DEP, both the
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          2  ability to get them under control and quickly, while

          3  at the same time working with the people that are

          4  trying to comply, because compliance can be

          5  complicated.

          6                 So my whole purpose in being here

          7  today was to provide that reassurance.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, terrific.

          9  Thank you for that, and of course, you know, we're

         10  looking at 123-A, versus like the 123 version last

         11  time; you're comfortable with the changes, the

         12  little tweaks and special fine?

         13                 MR. HEIM: I have to tell you, the

         14  special fine thing is new for us. It has not been

         15  presented to the CAC. In talking with Mr. LaGrada in

         16  the course of the testimony today, he agreed to

         17  present it to the CAC.

         18                 I really don't believe the CAC will

         19  have any problem with it, but I can't speak for

         20  them. But that is a new wrinkle to this whole thing,

         21  as far as we're concerned.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, something

         23  that we're -- but to the extent that it gives us the

         24  ability to act on some people that need acting upon,

         25  sounded good to me.
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          2                 MR. HEIM: I agree.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just wanted to

          4  know how it sounded to you.

          5                 Thank you for coming down to help

          6  provide the reassurance that we're looking for here

          7  in the Committee that we're doing precisely the

          8  right thing.

          9                 And in the larger sense, I thank you

         10  for your good corporate citizenship in working with

         11  the CAC and helping you know DEP to do its job.

         12                 I mean, if you have a close nexus

         13  between the regulator and the regulated entity, I

         14  mean a helpful and cooperative closeness, then

         15  that's certainly a form for getting good things

         16  done.

         17                 MR. HEIM: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I think

         19  that's what we have here.

         20                 And, so, Mr. Heim, thank you for

         21  coming down. I appreciate it.

         22                 MR. HEIM: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What part of

         24  Queens is your --

         25                 MR. HEIM: Queens Village.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see. Oh.

          3  It's right by me. You're almost in my district for

          4  crying out loud. I'm a little north and west of

          5  where you are. So, you're close by. So, we're

          6  neighbors. Thank you, neighbor, for coming down. I

          7  appreciate it.

          8                 MR. HEIM: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         10                 Okay, we have no more witnesses so

         11  it's hammer time, okay? It's hammer time. Hearing

         12  adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 2:10 p.m.)
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